ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPCORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 17, 2009
1:10 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representative Craig Johnson, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Miunoz
Representati ve M ke Doogan
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEVBERS ABSENT
Representative John Harris
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 114

"An Act relating to availability of state transportation
facilities and state-owned or state-operated transportation
nodes for delivering conpassionate aid during a disaster
ener gency. "

- HEARD AND HELD; ASSI GNED TO SUBCOW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 114

SHORT TITLE: USE STATE TRANS FACI LI TY FOR DI SASTER Al D
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) RAMRAS

02/ 04/ 09 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 09 (H TRA, FIN

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE JAY RAMRAS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions as prine
sponsor of HB 114.

DANA STROWMEN, St af f
Representative Jay Ranras

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- February 17, 2009



Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as the prine sponsor of HB 114.

MCHUGH PI ERRE, Director of Communications, Legislative Liaison

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA)

Ft. Richardson, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 114.

M KE M TCHELL, Senior Assistant Attorney GCeneral

Cvil Division, Labor and State Affairs Section - Anchorage
Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 114.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1:10: 54 PM

CHAIR PEGGY WLSON called the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:10 p.m Representatives Doogan,
Johansen, Minoz, and WIlson were present at the call to order.
Representati ves Gruenberg and Johnson arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HB 114- USE STATE TRANS FACI LI TY FOR DI SASTER Al D

1: 11: 00 PM

CHAIR WLSON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 114, "An Act relating to availability of state
transportation facilities and state-owned or state-operated
transportation nodes for delivering conpassionate aid during a
di saster energency."”

1:12:17 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JAY RAMRAS, Alaska State Legislature, prine
sponsor of HB 114, stated that he would be available to answer

questions, but his staff, Dana Strommren, will present the bill.

1:12: 55 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -2- February 17, 2009



DANA STROWEN, Staff, Representative Jay Ranras, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, testified on Dbehalf of the prime sponsor,

Representative Ranras of HB 114. She explained the reason to
add “conpassionate aid’” by state-owned or state-operated
transportation nodes during a disaster energency. She rel ated

that during the initial week of the legislative session, the
village of Emonak circulated a plea for help since very high
food and fuel <costs forced sone to nmake a choice between
purchasing food and heating fuel. She offered that sone
churches such as Zion Lutheran Church and other nonprofits
coll ected over 1,000 pounds of food for the village in Wstern
Al aska. However, an issue arose with transportation costs which
meant about 30 to 40 percent of the cash donations raised would
be needed to transport food to the village. She remarked that a
can of Crisco shortening cost $18 in the village. Ms. Strommen
reiterated that the organizations would have to sacrifice sone
funds for transportation costs.

M5. STROMMEN recei ved overwhel m ng support from an outpouring of
private donations and relief nationw de. Thus, Representative
Ranras spearheaded raising over 4,000 pounds for Kotlik, a
village northeast of Emmonak. Subsequently, donations have been
collected for 11 villages facing simlar circunstances. These
villages are targeted since the tribal councils specifically
wote to the Departnent of Commerce, Conmmunity, & Economc
Devel opnent (DCCED) to request recognition for an “economc
di saster” which is still pending. Currently, many private and
faith-based organi zations in Fairbanks and Anchorage are working
to provide food for 11 villages. The purpose of HB 114 is to
allow the state to aid in transportation through agencies such
as the Department of Public Safety (DPS), which assisted in
transporting over 4,000 pounds of food to Kotlik in the past
several weeks.

M5. STROMMEN reiterated that this bill wll allow nonprofit
organi zations to donate the entire anount of the relief to those
who need it. This bill also addresses the issue of the

necessity for declaring a disaster, since many transportation
nodes could be wused to reach out a helping hand to nake
donations during tinmes of inmnent econom c disaster.

1:17: 04 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON recalled an article in an Anchorage paper

during the 1980s in which villagers could not hunt since the
caribou mgration was significantly del ayed. He further

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 3- February 17, 2009



recalled that the state flew in the neat. He inquired as to
whether this bill is needed or what has changed since 1980.

M5. STROWEN responded that the DCCED sends people to assess
situations prior to declaring an econom c disaster. This bill
could work in tandem with the DCCED to provide a neans to
initially help people prior to the protocol steps being taken to
decl are a disaster.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON mai ntai ned his concern that the bill my
not be necessary since the state previously used Al aska State
Trooper aircraft to fly nmeat between vill ages.

1:19: 09 PM

The conmttee took an at-ease from1:19 p.m to 1:20 p. m

1:20: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS answered that he cannot explain why the
state is not addressing the need in Wstern Al aska. He opi ned
that it troubles him deeply. He related that he and a nenber
from the other body flew to Wstern Al aska. He said, “It
saddens nme greatly.” He explained he has personally been
involved in anti-hunger relief in his comunity for 12 to 15
years, raising one nllion pounds of food for the Fairbanks

Communi ty Food Bank.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS related that he considers hunger as the
| onest common denom nator next to personal safety. He rel ated
that no one can afford to buy the food in the villages. He
opined that is the same reason that food banks are located in
urban areas. He related that the working poor, or in this
instance a large cross section of the comunity cannot afford to
pur chase food. He remarked that a three pound can of Crisco
which sells for $5 in Juneau sells for $9 in Nome and $18 in
rural Al aska. He stated that eggs cost $25 a dozen and other
staple itens such as flour and mlk are not affordable. He said
that this goes right to the dignity of people in rural Al aska.
He questioned how strong our society is if rural Al askans are
not treated with the sane neasure of dignity that is afforded in
our urban districts.

1: 22: 33 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- February 17, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON appl auded the work that Representative
Ranras has done to address hunger. He inquired as to whether he
coul d expl ain what has changed in the past 20 years.

REPRESENTATI VE RAVMRAS related his understanding that the
| egi sl ature tightened up the paraneters for declaring disasters.
He recalled that the paraneter for declaring a disaster is
currently related to the federal |evel of incone, which was set
at $24, 000. He indicated that the average per capita incone in
Western Al aska is $35,000 per person. However, he enphasized
that when a household is paying $600 for electricity, wth
heating costs for a 1,000 square foot home in excess of $1,000
per nonth, but sell salnmon to generate income, that it 1is
difficult to survive. He said, “It's hard out there.” He
related that Lynden, Alaska Airlines, and DPS collectively
transported 4,465 pounds of food from Fairbanks grocery stores

to Kotlik. He nmentioned that of 30 nenbers who greeted
Representative Ranras and their senator during a recent visit,
that everyone acknow edged that they received the food. He
said, “It was hunbling.”

1:25:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN referred to the bill title which
includes the |I|anguage, “during a disaster energency.” He

inquired as to whether the governor has declared this a disaster
emer gency.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS answered no, that the governor has not
decl ared the area a di saster.

1: 26: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN al so comended Representative Ranras’s
work to provide food for the hungry. He referred to on page 2,
par agraph (12), to the new |l anguage in the bill. He inquired as
to whether the new |language in the bill is still not available
if an energency is not declared by the governor.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said that raises an excellent issue and
stated that his goal was to provide a |lesser renedy that does
not “waterfall cash assets into a comunity” but instead
triggers assets of state transportation. He indicated that
wi thout the new provision to AS 26.23.020 (12), that the only
remedy left to the governor is to provide a half a mllion
dollars of economic aid into a conmunity. He reiterated his

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 5- February 17, 2009



goal was to provide a |lesser degree of aid to comunities that
woul d not require that a disaster be decl ared.

1:27:45 PM

CHAIR WLSON advised that M. Mtchell from the Departnent of
Law is avail able on |ine.

1:27:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN referred to page 1, lines 13-14, which
states a governor nay use all available resources of the state
gover nment , whi ch he sai d he assumned i ncl udes state
transportation. He acknow edged t he hi gh cost of
transportation, but inquired as to whether augnmenting funds, is
r edundant .

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS offered his belief that a declaration
could have been decl ared. However, this bill would address a
narrower provision of AS 26.23.020, to allow a governor to cal
for a declaration of disaster.

1:29: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN related his understanding the reason for
zero fiscal note is that emergency funds coul d be used.

MCHUGH PI ERRE, Director of Communications; Legislative Liaison

Ofice of the Commissioner, Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans'
Affairs (DWA), answered that the |anguage gives the DWA an
enphasis and direction on how to proceed when the departnent
responds to energencies. He explained that the change woul d not
inmpact the DWA's operating budget. He offered that the
Di saster Relief Fund is funded by the legislature. When the
fund reaches a certain threshold cost, which he said he believes
is between $500,000 and $1 million, depending on the situation

t he DWA requests additional funds to acconplish the m ssion and
rescue Al askans. He referred to page 1, lines 13-14, which
reads “use all available resources ...” is enconpassed in the
Di saster Relief Fund.

1: 31: 46 PM

MR. PIERRE, in response to Representative Johnson, answered that
a disaster declaration does trigger and nobilize the Alaska
Nat i onal Guard, which is a conponent of the U S. National Guard.
Thus, the assets used are not state assets, but federal assets.

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 6- February 17, 2009



Until a disaster is declared, the DWA cannot use material,
traini ng, and manpower unless it reinburses the federal
gover nnment . Once a disaster is declared, those resources are
avai |l abl e, he stated.

1: 32: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to AS 26.23.020, and rel ated
his wunderstanding that normally, the governor nust declare a
di saster, which is defined in AS 26.23.900(2), as basically
natural disasters, but would not include economc disaster,
which is specifically not included. He indicated that AS
26.23.020 (h) wuses the term "incident" instead of disaster.
However, he said the term“incident” is not defined. He pointed
out that some nenbers have questions whether the bill is
necessary since it my have been solved in practice in 1980 or
may be covered. He opined that the term “econom c energency” is
not nentioned. He surmsed that defining “incident” could
include a reference to econom c energenci es.

MR. PIERRE responded by initially confirmng that the DWA and
the admnistration support HB 114. He related that the
adm nistration views the bill as an opportunity to add statutory
references that could help people in tines of energency other
than “throwing noney at it” or using only state assets for
relief. He stated that people in the community are willing to
provi de assistance to others during an energency. He offered
support for the language in the bill and the sponsor's efforts.

1: 36: 48 PM

MKE M TCHELL, Senior  Assistant Attorney Ceneral, G vi
Di vi si on, Labor and State Affairs Section -  Anchorage,
Departnent of Law (DOL), explained that he represents the DWA
during disasters and that he has held his position since md-
2000. He pointed out the way the bill is witten is that it
would add to the list of extraordi nary gubernatorial powers that
apply in the event of a declared disaster. He revi ewed severa
powers, including that it would allow the governor to use
private property. He offered his belief that the power is
probably subsumed in existing subsection (g) paragraph (2) which
allows the governor to use all available resources in the event
of a decl ared di saster.

MR. M TCHELL said that he agrees with prior speakers, that this

applies only in the event of a declared disaster. He i ndicated
that the problem wth the Emmonak situation is that a purely

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- February 17, 2009



econoni c di saster does not neet the definition of disaster in AS

26. 23. 900. He remarked that he has recently reviewed the
| egi slative history of changes to that definition in 1999 and
2000. He opined that the legislature provided a clear

| egislative history that the legislature intended to restrict
the governor’s powers to use extraordinary disaster powers and
funding in the event of a purely economic disaster. That led to
changes in the definition which resulted in the list of specific
incidents in which a disaster declaration can be issued. He
reiterated that the definition creates the limtation that has
arisen with respect to a response in Wstern Al aska. He offered
his belief that adding paragraph (12) to the list would not give
governor authority to wutilize the transportation resources
unl ess a di saster can be declared under AS 26.23. 900.

1: 40: 05 PM

CHAIR WLSON recalled the Cty and Borough of Juneau (CBJ) had
an energy crisis and that the CBJ Mayor asked to have a disaster
decl ar ed. She further recalled that did not happen. She
inquired as to whether the decision was based on econonics or
for another reason.

MR. M TCHELL said he did not know. He related that the problem
was due to an aval anche, which is within the list that could be
used to declare a di saster.

1:41: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG rel ated his understanding that Al aska
could benefit wth the ability to declare an econom c energency.
He inquired as to whether |anguage should be added to define
econom c emner gency.

MR. M TCHELL agreed that he would be available to assist the
Legislative Council, since that commttee was involved in the
1999 and 2000 changes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his services to assist in
drafting a definition, if the coormittee agreed that it would be
usef ul to add a definition. He opined that sever al
ci rcunstances and comunities that could have benefitted from a
definition, such as last year’s aval anche in Juneau.

1: 43: 26 PM

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 8- February 17, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN pointed out that he is a cosponsor of
the bill. He inquired as to whether the prinme sponsor is
interested in adding a definition to the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS agreed that it would be an enhancenent to
the HB 114 to include a definition for "incident” which he said

he believes will addresses a weakness in the bill. He further
noted that doing so could create a wedge w thout “water falling”
cash into communities. He reiterated the bill’s purpose, which

is to enhance the ability of nonprofits and individuals
statewide to assist comunities w thout incurring the high cost
of transportation. He related that in 1980, a mnechanism was
triggered that helped the villagers in rural Al aska. He
indicated that three departnents, DPS, DCCED, and MA could only
detail future lists, but could not provide acute relief to the
“hungry people” in 11 communities. He enmphasized his
frustration and prom sed to articulate this appropriately.

1:46: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN inquired as to whether Representative
Ranras would work on this matter in a non-partisan effort.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN inquired as to whether the drafters could
consi der changes that would shorten the bill and not necessitate
listing the detail.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that they could confer on the
matter.

1:48:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON i nquired as to whether a condition exists
that would allow funds to be used for transportation w thout the
governor issuing a declaration of energency. He sunmarized his
goal would be to provide transportation solutions but not to use
any ot her state expenditures.

1:49:17 PM

REPRESENTATIVE GRUENBERG inquired as to whether maki ng
transportation funding available to nonprofits would increase
the state’s potential for liability, relating that his goal
would be to provide assistance but not increase the state’'s
exposur e.

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 9- February 17, 2009



MR MTCHELL agreed that could be a definite concern. He
suggested the committee could work with the Torts and Wrkers
Conpensation Section to consider any liability.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN recalled that wunless a disaster is
decl ared that Al aska National Guard funding cannot be used. He
offered his belief that transportation would be limted to state
aircraft such as the AST aircraft.

MR. Pl ERRE agreed. He indicated that the DWA is bound by
federal and state |law to use Al aska National Guard assets only
once a disaster has been declared. However, he noted that other
equi pnent is available such as Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities (DOT&F), and AST ranging from boats to
ai r pl anes.

MR. PIERRE, in response to Representative Johnson, explained
that the ANGDA Operation Santa Claus is a federally sanctioned
m ssion through the U S. Departnent of Defense. He offered that
the operation is a goodwill mssion to villages, which he said
is also used as a recruiting tool.

1:53:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expressed concern and his belief that it
is difficult to justify that Operation Santa Caus is elevated
above hunger. He said he appreciated that the program is
nationally sanctioned and acknowl edged his participation by
wrappi ng gifts and obtai ni ng donati ons.

MR. PIERRE said he did not agree that the operation “trunps
hunger” but reiterated that due to state and federal law, the
DWA is prohibited from using equipnent unless a disaster
decl arati on has been signed.

1: 55: 26 PM

MR MTCHELL, in response to Chair WIson, responded that it
would not necessarily have an effect on federal law, wth
respect to the Al aska National Guard assets. He expl ai ned that
he is researching at the federal |evel whether ANGDA assets can
be used for an “incident”, in instances in which a governor
issued a proclamation for sonmething less than declaring a
di saster. He said, “The long and short is that what the state
can do within its constitutional powers cannot trunp federal
l aw. ”

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 10- February 17, 2009



1:56: 39 PM

CHAIR WLSON clarified that she was speaking to the nmany planes
t hroughout the state that would be avail abl e.

MR M TCHELL agreed that it would be wthin the governor’s
authority to use state assets in an energency, provided that
sufficient statutory authority exists. He opined that AS 26.23
needs to be reviewed to determne if sufficient authority
exi st s.

CHAIR WLSON inquired as to whether the governor currently has
t hat power.

MR. M TCHELL agreed that the governor has the authority but only
during a declared disaster.

CHAIR WLSON enphasized that the conmittee wll need M.
Mtchell’s assistance to ensure that that the bill IS
appropriately crafted to conply with the state and federal
constitutions.

MR. M TCHELL agreed he could assist. However, he opined that
the authority does not exist under current |law short of a
decl ared di saster.

1: 58: 07 PM

CHAIR WLSON recalled that the econonmic disaster in the 1980s
happened since the caribou not yet mgrated. She inquired as to
whet her the villagers could hunt.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS described the situation in the 11 Western
Al aska vill ages. He indicated that the fish runs were not
sati sfactory. He explained that he held discussions with an
el der from the comunity of Unal ukleet who suggested that the
problem stens from a narrowing of fish run from 120,000 to
20,000 during the past decade. He enphasi zed that in the past,
the state responded and people found a way to obtain
transportation resources. He offered his frustration stens from

the compilation of lists and inventories instead of addressing
the acute need. He said, “W seem to be bound by a |arger
bureaucratic Gordian knot.” He opined he is trying to unravel

the knot, but that Alaska is now part of a global village. He
observed that people mght be sick but wait until they need to
energency airlifts sinply because people cannot afford
preventative health care services. He further enphasized that

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- February 17, 2009



fuel cost $10 per gallon. He related a scenario during which
residents of Kotlik could not afford to travel to a potlatch
held in Emonak, 30 air mles away, but is 60 to 70 mles al ong
a winding river. Thus, it could cost $60 to $70 to visit. He
recalled a recent editorial that discusses these cultures have
survived 10, 000 years, yet are currently under goi ng
difficulties.

2:02:56 PM

CHAIR WLSON assigned HB 114 to a subconmttee consisting of
Representatives Minoz, chair, Guenberg, and Johnson. She
recapped that the subcommttee would work with M. Marsh, and
will report back to the conmttee.

2:04: 09 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 2:04
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- February 17, 2009



